
LAMBETH PALACE LIBRARY: CATALOGUES, SHELF MARKS AND OTHER 
EVIDENCE FOR THE HISTORY OF THE COLLECTION 

1785-1952 

 

 

This guide to sources for the history of the Library continues from the previous 

guide which covered the years from the foundation of the Library in 1610 to the 

death of the long-serving Lambeth Librarian, Andrew Coltee Ducarel, in 1785. 

PART A: 1785-1862 

The Library under Archbishops Moore and Manners-Sutton, 1785-1828 

In the years from 1785 to 1828 the Library was under the direction first of John 

Moore (Archbishop 1783-1805) and then of Charles Manners-Sutton (Archbishop 

1805-28). Amongst the principal developments in this period were the accession 

of a substantial collection of pamphlets in, or soon after, 1802, and the gift by 

Archbishop Manners-Sutton of the Carlyle Greek manuscripts as well as a 

significant collection of Bibles and other printed books and manuscripts.  

During this period the Library continued to be housed in the building constructed 
for Archbishop Sheldon in the 1660s around the four sides of the cloister court at 
Lambeth Palace. Engravings published in 1806 provide an external view of the 
north, east and west sides overlooking the cloister court, and an interior view of 
the north and east galleries on the lower floor of the Library showing the shelving 
and Library furniture. See E.W. Brayley and W. Herbert, A Concise Account ... of 
Lambeth Palace (London, 1806), plates following pp. 20, 60. During the primacy of 
Manners-Sutton, however, there was some re-arrangement of the two rooms on 
the upper floor which housed the Manuscripts Library. H.J. Todd recorded that all 
the manuscripts and records were brought together in the inner room, while the 
outer room (already used to house printed pamphlets from at least 1757) was set 
aside by Archbishop Manners-{ǳǘǘƻƴ ŦƻǊ ŀŎŎŜǎǎƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ōƻƻƪǎ ΨŀƴŘ 
particularly of Bibles, the curious collection of which his Grace has very 
ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊŀōƭȅ ŀǳƎƳŜƴǘŜŘΩ όǎŜŜ IΦWΦ ¢ƻŘŘΣ A catalogue of the archiepiscopal 
manuscripts in the library at Lambeth Palace (London, 1812), p. x). 
 



 

Lambeth Palace Library (E.W. Brayley and William Herbert, ! ŎƻƴŎƛǎŜ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘ Χ ƻŦ 

Lambeth Palace, 1806, plate following p. 20) 

 
Publication of the catalogue by H.J. Todd of the manuscripts, followed by his more 

detailed catalogue of the Carlyle manuscripts, was also important in the 

development of the Library. ¢ƘŜ ǇǳōƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ¢ƻŘŘΩǎ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 

manuscripts was funded by Archbishop Manners-Sutton. 

William Clarke stated in 1819 that the Library contained upward of 25,000 

ǾƻƭǳƳŜǎ ŀƴŘ ƴƻǘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘΣ ΨDuring the primacy of the present Archbishop 

[Manners-Sutton] very important additions have been made to the Library; the 

ǘƘŜƻƭƻƎƛŎŀƭ Ŏƭŀǎǎ ǇŀǊǘƛŎǳƭŀǊƭȅ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊŀōƭȅ ŀǳƎƳŜƴǘŜŘ ōȅ Ƙƛǎ DǊŀŎŜΩΦ {ŜŜ 

William Clarke, Repertorium Bibliographicum (London, 1819), pp. 93-100. 

!ŎŎƻǊŘƛƴƎ ǘƻ ŎƻƴǘŜƳǇƻǊŀǊȅ ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ мунпΥ  Ψ¢ƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅ ƴƻǿ Ŏƻƴǘŀƛƴǎ нр,000 

volumes, exclusive of between seven and eight hundred volumes of valuable 

manuscripts. To the honour of the present Archbishop it ought to be stated that 

he has been at the expense of printing an excellent and copious catalogue of the 

manuscripts, and has also partially opened the Archiepiscopal library to the 



public; that he has not rendered it more accessible is probably owing to a delicacy 

he may feel on account of his being only a guardian for life of the treasures and 

bound to hand them down to his successors unimpaired. We trust, however, that 

scruples of this sort will not long be allowed to interfere with the diffusion of 

ƭƛǘŜǊŀǘǳǊŜ ŀƴŘ ǎŎƛŜƴŎŜΩΦ (Sholto and Reuben Percy, London, or interesting 

memorials of its rise, progress and present state, vol 3, 1824, pp. 302-3).  

Librarians and Keepers of the Records: 

Following the death of Andrew Coltee Ducarel in 1785, Archbishop Moore 

appointed the antiquary Michael Lort, D.D. (1724/5-1790) as Librarian on 31 

March 1786. 9ȄŎŜǇǘƛƻƴŀƭƭȅΣ ǘƘŜ ŀǇǇƻƛƴǘƳŜƴǘΣ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƻŦŦƛŎŜ ƻŦ Ψ[ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴ ƻǊ YŜŜǇŜǊ 

ƻŦ Ƙƛǎ DǊŀŎŜΩǎ [ƛōǊŀǊȅ ŀǘ [ŀƳōŜǘƘ tŀƭŀŎŜΩΣ ǿŀǎ ǊŜŎƻǊŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇΩs Act 

Book (VB1/12, p. 10). [ƻǊǘΩǎ ŜŎŎƭŜǎƛŀǎǘƛŎŀƭ ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘǎΣ ŜǎǇŜŎƛŀƭƭȅ ŀǎ wŜŎǘƻǊ ƻŦ {ǘΦ 

aŀǘǘƘŜǿΩǎ CǊƛŘŀȅ {ǘǊŜŜǘΣ [ƻƴŘƻƴΣ ŀƴŘ Ƙƛǎ ŀƴǘƛǉǳŀǊƛŀƴ ǇǳǊǎǳƛǘǎΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ŀ ǊƻƭŜ ŀǎ 

numismatist to the Duke of Devonshire, limited his work in the Library.  

 

Hand of Michael Lort (MS 1996, f. i) 

 
!ŦǘŜǊ [ƻǊǘΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ ƛn 1790 Archbishop Moore appointed the antiquary John 
Topham (1746-1803) to the role of ΨManuscripts LibrarianΩ. This is the title used by 
Topham to describe his office in 1800 when he gave evidence concerning the 



Library to the Select Committee appointed to inquire into the state of the public 
records of the kingdom. See the wŜǇƻǊǘǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ {ŜƭŜŎǘ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ Χ Second 
Report (London, 1801), Appendix T, pp. 387-9. A letter from Topham to 
Archbishop Moore in 1796, acknowledging a draft for £40 probably relates to his 
salary (Moore 2, ff. 158-66). £40 per annum was the traditional salary of the 
Librarian, still paid at this rate during the primacies of Archbishops Howley and 
Sumner.  
 

 

Hand of John Topham (Moore 2, f. 162r) 

 
Responsibility for printed books in the Library fell to Revd. Henry Dimock (c.1729-
1810), Old Testament scholar and Chaplain to Archbishop Moore. Edward Hasted 
ǎǘŀǘŜŘ ƻŦ 5ƛƳƻŎƪ ǘƘŀǘ ƘŜ Ψƛǎ ƴƻǿ όмтфуύ a domestic chaplain and librarian to his 
DǊŀŎŜ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ ƻŦ /ŀƴǘŜǊōǳǊȅΩ. See Edward Hasted, The history and 
topographical survey of the county of Kent, vol 8 (Canterbury, 1798), pp. 272-5. A 
note on his burial at Great Mongeham in 1810 (probably by his son Charles, then 
Rector of Great aƻƴƎŜƘŀƳύΣ ǎǘŀǘŜǎΥ ΨIŜƴǊȅ 5ƛƳƻŎƪ ǿŀǎ ōǳǊƛŜŘ {ŜǇ нлΦ He had 
been the schoolfellow, fellow collegian, the chaplain, the librarian, and the 



confidential friend of John Moore, Archbishop of Canterbury. Aged 81ΩΦ όΨ9ȄǘǊŀŎǘǎ 
ŦǊƻƳ DǊŜŀǘ aƻƴƎŜƘŀƳ ǊŜƎƛǎǘŜǊǎΩΣ Archaeologia Cantiana vol 15, 1883, p. 360). 
Dimock compiled catalogues of pamphlets (LR/F/26-27), carried out stock checks 
(MSS 1996-1997) and made numerous additions to the catalogues of printed 
books (eg. LR/F/22, p. 201, a note dated 6 March 1798; LR/F/17, p. 439 recording 
a book given by Dimock in 1800).  
 

 

Hand of Henry Dimock (MS 1997 f. 17r) 

 
John Topham was succeeded in charge of the manuscripts by a literary scholar, 
Revd. Henry John Todd (1763-1845). Todd ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜŘ ƘƛƳǎŜƭŦ ŀǎ ΨKeeper of the 
!ǊŎƘƛŜǇƛǎŎƻǇŀƭ aŀƴǳǎŎǊƛǇǘǎ ŀƴŘ wŜŎƻǊŘǎΩ in the catalogue which he compiled: A 
catalogue of the archiepiscopal manuscripts in the library at Lambeth Palace 
(London, 1812). He also stated that he had been ΨKeeper of the Archiepiscopal 
Manuscripts and RecordsΩ in 1806 when the Carlyle manuscripts arrived at 
Lambeth (see H.J. Todd, An account of Greek manuscripts, chiefly biblical, which 
ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǎǎŜǎǎƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǘŜ ǇǊƻŦŜǎǎƻǊ /ŀǊƭȅƭŜΧ ό[ƻƴŘƻƴ ώмуноϐύΣ ǇΦ 41. 
Todd was appointed by his patron Archbishop Moore and probably held the office 
from 1803 until 1818, when he moved to Yorkshire. While at Lambeth Palace 
Library he had numerous other literary and ecclesiastical commitments, including 



as Rector of All Hallows, Lombard Street (1801-10), Rector of Coulsdon (from 
1807) and Vicar of Addington (from 1812).  
 
In the Preface to his A catalogue of the archiepiscopal manuscripts in the library 
at Lambeth Palace (London, 1812), Todd also referred ǘƻ ƘƛƳǎŜƭŦ ŀǎ Ψ[ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴΩ, 
and mentioned Ψthe fees which belong to the Librarian in his capacity as Keeper of 
ǘƘŜ wŜŎƻǊŘǎΩΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ƳƛƎƘǘ ƛƳǇƭȅ ǘƘŀǘ ¢ƻŘŘ ƘŀŘ ǘŀƪŜƴ overall charge of the Library 
after the death of Dimock in 1810, but possibly he was referring to himself as the 
Librariŀƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ψ[ƛōǊŀǊȅ ƻŦ aŀƴǳǎŎǊƛǇǘǎΩ ŀ ǇƘǊŀǎŜ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƘŜ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊƭȅ ǳǎŜŘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘƛǎ 
distinct Ŝƴǘƛǘȅ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ Ψ!ǊŎƘƛŜǇƛǎŎƻǇŀƭ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩΦ !ƴ ŜƴǘǊȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ 
ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ƻŦ ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ōƻƻƪǎΣ ǊŜŎƻǊŘƛƴƎ ŀ ŎƻǇȅ ƻŦ WƻƘƴǎƻƴΩǎ Dictionary, corrected 
and enlarged by Todd ό[ƻƴŘƻƴΣ мумуύ ƛǎ ƛƴ ¢ƻŘŘΩǎ ƘŀƴŘ ό[wκCκмуΣ ǇΦ ффрύΦ   
 

 

Hand of Henry John Todd ( MS 3120, f. 5r) 



 
A few miscellaneous papers of Ducarel, Lort, Topham, Dimock and Todd, including 
a diagram showing the disposition of the manuscripts as shelved in the time of 
Lort, and a list by Todd showing the distribution of the 200 printed copies of his 
catalogue of the Lambeth manuscripts, is in LR/D/5. 
 
After the deaths of Henry Dimock in 1810 and the departure of Henry John Todd 
in 1818, it becomes unclear who held formal responsibility for the Library and the 
!ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇΩǎ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΦ The regulations laid down by Archbishop Moore in 1796 
gave a role to his chaplains in making loans in the absence of the Librarian 
(LR/B/1, f. 1).  Archbishop Manners-Sutton employed a succession of highly 
literate and catholic-minded chaplains who made extensive use of the Library (see 
LR/B/1) and at least one of these was engaged in the work of the Library. The 
Assistant Secretary at Lambeth Palace also came to play a significant role with 
regard to the archiepiscopal records.  
 
A printed leaflet of c.1817-18, certainly no later than 1818, indicates that the 
Keeper of the Archiepiscopal Records attended the Library on two days per month 
όŜȄŎŜǇǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƭƻƴƎ ǾŀŎŀǘƛƻƴύΤ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƘŜƭŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ {ŜŎǊŜǘŀǊȅΩǎ hŦŦƛŎŜ ŀǘ 
Lambeth Palace and enquiries would be answered by Mr. Lewis in that Office 
from Monday to Saturday (LR/D/5).  Thomas Archdeacon Lewis (1780-1862) was 
Assistant Secretary successively to Archbishops Manners-Sutton and Howley and 
afterwards to two Bishops of London, Blomfield and Tait. He appears frequently in 
ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇǎΩ act books (VB1/14-16) between 1813 and the death of Howley in 
1848.  
 
.ȅ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊ мунп DŜƻǊƎŜ 5Ωhȅƭȅ (1778-1846)Σ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇΩǎ /ƘŀǇƭŀƛƴ from 1813, 
Rector of Lambeth 1820-46, and biographer of Archbishop Sancroft (1821), was 
serving as Keeper of the ArchbisƘƻǇΩǎ wecords. In that year he provided a 
transcript of the Parliamentary survey of the parish of Swine. Thomas Thompson, 
A history of the church and priory of Swine in Holderness (Hull, 1824), pp. 208-211, 
ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘΣ ŜƴŘƛƴƎ Ψ¢Ƙƛǎ ƛǎ ŀ ǘǊǳŜ ŎƻǇȅ of the survey in the aforesaid 
volume of Parliamentary surveys, preserved in the Library at Lambeth Palace. 
DŜƻǊƎŜ 5ΩhȅƭȅΣ 5Φ5ΦΣ YŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ ƻŦ /ŀƴǘŜǊōǳǊȅΩǎ wŜŎƻǊŘǎΣ [ŀƳōŜǘƘ 
Palace Library, CŜōǊǳŀǊȅ нΣ мунпΩΦ Lǘ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ǘƘŀǘ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ǎǳŎŎŜŜŘŜŘ ¢odd in 1818, 
ǿƘƛƭŜ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ǿŀǎ wŜŎǘƻǊ ƻŦ .ǳȄǘŜŘΣ 9ŀǎǘ {ǳǎǎŜȄ (and simultaneously Chaplain at 



Lambeth), and possibly the leaflet of c.1817-18 represents the new arrangements 
which he set in place on taking office.  
 
5Ωhȅƭȅ also played a more general role in the Library, effectively serving as 
Librarian, whether formally appointed or not. In 1824, for instance, he wrote an 
inscription in a splendid copy on vellum of the Greek/Latin Novum Testamentum 
edited by Erasmus (Basel, 1519), recording its purchase for the Library by 
Archbishop Manners-{ǳǘǘƻƴ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǎŀƭŜ ƻŦ {ƛǊ aŀǊƪ {ȅƪŜǎΩ ŎƻƭƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ aŀȅ мунпΦ 
!ǘ ǎƻƳŜ ŘŀǘŜ ƛƴ ƻǊ ŀŦǘŜǊ муну ƘŜ ŀƴƴƻǘŀǘŜŘ ŀ ŎƻǇȅ ƻŦ IΦWΦ ¢ƻŘŘΩǎ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ƻŦ 
1812 (now at Z6622.L6L2), adding descriptions of new acquisitions, MSS 1222-
1226 [all subsequently renumbered, probably in the 1840s by S.R. Maitland; 1222-
1224 are now amongst printed books; 1225 is now MS 1362; 1226 is now MS 
1365]. IŜ ŀǇǇŜŀǊǎ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊƭȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ ǊŜƎƛǎǘŜǊ ƻŦ ƭƻŀƴǎ ό[wκ.κмύ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ 
1813 and 1834, recording loans not only to himself but to the Archbishop of 
Canterbury and others. In 1813 he recorded the loan of the ΨPopulation AbstractΩ 
ŦƻǊ ǳǎŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ {ŜŎǊŜǘŀǊȅΩǎ ƻŦŦƛŎŜΤ in 1815 a loan to Dr. A. Bell; in 1817 books loaned 
to James Hatley FǊŜǊŜΣ Ψǘƻ ōŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴŜŘ ƛƴ ŀ ŦƻǊǘƴƛƎƘǘ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ ǘƛƳŜΩΣ ƛƴ 
1818 books loaned to H.H. Norris; in 1822 books loaned to the Clarendon Press 
for its edition in that year of Certain sermons or homilies; in 1822 and 1824 books 
ǘŀƪŜƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ {ŜŎǊŜǘŀǊȅΩǎ ƻŦŦƛŎŜ ŦƻǊ ŜȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ ƭƻŀƴǎ όƛƴ 1824 to Mr Petre); in 1826 a 
book loaned to Lord NugentΣ ƛǎǎǳŜŘ ōȅ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ŀƴŘ ǎƛƎƴŜŘ ōŀŎƪ ōȅ ƘƛƳ ƛƴ муом 
(LR/B/1, ff. 18r, 20r, 24r, 25v, 26v, 27r). None of the other chaplains appear to 
have recorded external loans although they did record loans to themselves and to 
the Archbishop. 
 
.ȅ ǘƘŜ муолǎ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ƘŀŘ ŎŜŘŜŘ Ƙƛǎ ǊƻƭŜ ŀǎ YŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ ƻŦ 
/ŀƴǘŜǊōǳǊȅΩǎ wŜŎƻǊŘǎ ǘƻ ¢ƘƻƳŀǎ !ǊŎƘŘŜŀŎƻƴ [ŜǿƛǎΦ See below on the Library 
under Archbishop Howley. 
 
Printed Books: 
 
Michael Lort and Henry Dimock both updated a shelflist of the printed books, 
compiled by Andrew Coltee Ducarel in 1767, providing a record of missing books 
to May 1795 (MSS 1996-1997). 
 
In March 1802 Henry Dimock also compiled a catalogue of a substantial collection 
of sermons, pamphlets and tracts in the upper room of the Vestry Tower [at 



Lambeth Palace], dating overwhelmingly from the late 18th century and no doubt 
arising from the activities of Archbishop Moore. Dimock recorded that these were 
Ψƴƻǿ ǊŜƳƻǾŜŘ ƛƴǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƻǳǘǿŀǊŘ ǊƻƻƳ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ a{{Φ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩ ό[wκCκнтύΦ IŜ ŀƭǎƻ 
compiled a supplementary index to the Secker pamphlets, improving access to 
them with entries under selected keywords (LR/F/26). 
 
During this period the catalogue of printed books compiled by David Wilkins in 
1718 (LR/F/17-19) continued in use, supplemented by the catalogues of the 
{ŜŎƪŜǊ ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ōƻƻƪǎ ό[wκCκннύ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ ǇŀƳǇƘƭŜǘǎ ό[wκCκно-25) 
compiled by Andrew Coltee Ducarel. Additions to these catalogues were made in 
various hands, including that of Henry Dimock, but little or no cataloguing of 
printed books appears to have been done between the death of Dimock in 1810 
and the appointment of S.R. Maitland in 1838. ¢ƘŜ ƘŀƴŘ ƻŦ DŜƻǊƎŜ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ŘƻŜǎ 
not appear in the catalogues. 
 
Archbishop Manners-Sutton gave a significant number of printed books, 
especially bibles. Some sixteen of these bibles or editions of parts of the Bible 
1541-1828 are so far identifiable by a keyword search [using the term Manners-
Sutton] ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƭƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ƻŦ ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ōƻƻƪǎΦ Others yet to be added include 
the Erasmus edition of the New Testament (1519) mentioned above. He also gave 
two works owned successively by Archbishop Cranmer and Lord Lumley: editions 
of the works of Jerome (Basel, 1516) and of the Almagest of Ptolemy (Basel, 
1538). These gifts were placed in the Manuscripts Library (see above) and were 
not entered in the catalogue of printed books. The editions of Jerome and of 
Ptolemy were numbered respectively as MSS 1228-1231 and MSS 1263-1264 
according to a list of manuscripts written in the 1840s by Samuel Roffey Maitland 
(LR/D/6).  
 
LR/D/5, ff. 166-167 is a table showing the number of printed books on each shelf 
in the Library. The table records the shelves in 'folio' presses 1-64, 'octavo' 
presses 1-33, and presses A-Q and AA-FF. It does not include the manuscripts 
library on the upper floor where some additional printed books were included. 
The table is undated, but is on paper watermarked 1818. At ff. 168-170 are 
statistics based on the table, calculating the total of the printed books in the 
lower library as 19,428.  
 



 

Arms of Archbishop Manners-Sutton. Binding of Vetus testamentum graecum e codice 

MS. Alexandrino (London, 1816). *E64.A5 

 

 

Bookplate of Archbishop Manners-Sutton. In The Hindee moral preceptor (Calcutta, 

1803). SK 1931  



Manuscripts and Archives: 
 
The publication of Henry John Todd, A catalogue of the archiepiscopal 
manuscripts in the library at Lambeth Palace (London, 1812) was of major 
importance in making the collection widely known. The bulk of this catalogue 
(covering MSS 1-1148) was an edition of the earlier, unpublished, catalogues by 
David Wilkins and A.C. Ducarel, although Todd claimed to have removed mistakes, 
improved dating, and provided foliation (see his Preface, pp. ix-x). Todd wrote the 
descriptions of MSS 1149-1221, which included the Carlyle Greek manuscripts. 
 
Todd also produced a fuller catalogue of the Carlyle Manuscripts, An account of 
the Greek manuscripts, chiefly biblical, which had been in the possession of the 
late Professor Carlyle (London, [1823]). 
 
Archbishop Manners-{ǳǘǘƻƴΩǎ interest in biblical studies, as well as other subjects, 
is also evident in the Latin and English manuscripts. Amongst the Manners-Sutton 
ƳŀƴǳǎŎǊƛǇǘǎ ǊŜŎƻǊŘŜŘ ƛƴ ¢ƻŘŘΩǎ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ƻŦ мумн ǿŜǊŜ works of Richard 
FitzRalph, Archbishop of Armagh, an Armenian Old Testament and a copy of the 
Koran (MSS 1208-1210), and three manuscripts once owned by Sir Roger 
Twysden, comprising the 13/14th century cartulary of the See of Canterbury, a 
13/14th century ƳƛǎŎŜƭƭŀƴȅ ŦǊƻƳ {ǘΦ !ǳƎǳǎǘƛƴŜΩǎΣ /ŀƴǘŜǊōǳǊȅΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘŜȄǘǎ 
relating to Magna Carta, and a further Koran (MSS 1211-1212). The Twysden 
manuscripts had not been given to the Archbishop by the Twysden family (as M.R. 
James supposed), but descended with other Twysden manuscripts to John 
{ŀǳƴŘŜǊǎ {ŜōǊƛƎƘǘ ŀƴŘ ǿŜǊŜ ǎƻƭŘ ŀǘ {ƻǘƘŜōȅΩǎ с !ǇǊƛƭ мултΦ ¢ƻŘŘ ƳŜƴǘƛƻƴŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ 
he had purchased manuscripts for the Archbishop at the Sebright sale (see the 
Preface to his catalogue, p. iv, footnote n). 
 
Amongst manuscripts acquired after 1812 and therefore not recorded by Todd 
were Wycliffite Gospels (MS 1366) given to the Archbishop by Granville Sharpe in 
1813. Two Latin Bibles of the 13th century (MSS 1362, 1364) were probably also 
acquired by Manners-Sutton, although not recorded with these numbers until the 
1840s in a list by S.R. Maitland (LR/D/5). The same list also records, for the first 
time, the 9th century Macdurnan Gospels (MS 1361). These had been seen in 
private hands and described by Ducarel around 1760. However neither Ducarel 
nor Todd recorded this manuscript in their catalogues of the Lambeth 
manuscripts and its acquisition for Lambeth is probably also due to Manners-



Sutton. It may be noted in passing that a theological miscellany by Thomas 
Traherne (MS 1360)Σ ŀƭǎƻ ǊŜŎƻǊŘŜŘ ƛƴ aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘΩǎ ƭƛǎǘΣ ƛǎ ŀƭǎƻ ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ 
acquired at this time. The fact that a number of Manners-Sutton manuscripts 
acquired after 1812 lay uncatalogued until the after the appointment of S.R. 
Maitland in 1838 (together with printed books housed in the Manuscripts Library) 
explains the obscurity regarding their provenance.  
 
Manners-{ǳǘǘƻƴ ŀƭǎƻ ŀŎǉǳƛǊŜŘ ŀ /ƘƛƴŜǎŜ ǘǊŀƴǎƭŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ {ǘΦ aŀǘǘƘŜǿΩǎ DƻǎǇŜƭΣ 
given by Claudius Buchanan (d. 1815), now MS 2081. 
 
In his report in 1801 to the Select Committee appointed to inquire into the state 
of the public records of the kingdom, John Topham described the archival series 
ǘƘŜƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ ŎŀǊŜΣ ƛŜΦ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇǎΩ ǊŜƎƛǎǘŜǊǎ ŦǊƻƳ tŜŎƘŀƳ ǘƻ tƻǘǘŜǊ 
(the registers from Archbishop Herring onwards being still in the custody of the 
±ƛŎŀǊ DŜƴŜǊŀƭ ŀǘ 5ƻŎǘƻǊǎΩ /ƻƳƳƻƴǎύΣ ǇŀǇŀƭ ōǳƭƭǎΣ ŎŀǊǘŀŜ ŀƴǘƛǉǳŀŜ Ŝǘ ƳƛǎŎŜƭƭŀƴŜŀŜΣ 
ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳƳƻƴǿŜŀƭǘƘ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΦ IŜ ǿǊƻǘŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƭƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ǿŀǎ ΨƭƻŘƎŜŘ ƛƴ ǎŀŦŜ 
and spacious rooms in the Manuscript Library ... and is securely and 
commodiously placed, the rooms being perfectly dry and free from danger of 
ŦƛǊŜΩΦ Iƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƛǎ ǊŜǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ƛƴ WŀƳŜǎ {ŀǾŀƎŜΣ The Librarian, vol 1 (London, 1808), 
pp. 133-8. 
 
Public Use and Access: 
 
The comments of Sholto and Reuben Percy on public access to the Library (see 

above) probably relate to its limited opening times. A later Lambeth Librarian, 

²ƛƭƭƛŀƳ {ǘǳōōǎΣ ǎǘŀǘŜŘΥ Ψ.ȅ ŀ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴ ŘǊŀǿƴ ǳǇ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǘƛƳŜ ƻŦ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ 

Sutton, the Library is accessible on the first and third Monday of every month, a 

ƴƻǘƛŦƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ǿƛǎƛǘ ōŜƛƴƎ ƳŀŘŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴ ōŜŦƻǊŜƘŀƴŘΩΦ IŜ ŎƻƴǘǊŀǎǘŜŘ 

this with his own attendance in the Library on Monday and Wednesday of every 

ǿŜŜƪ ό/ƘǳǊŎƘ /ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴŜǊǎΩ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ 9/9κтκмκнуфтоΣ ǇŀǊǘ мΣ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ōȅ {ǘǳōōǎ ол 

July 1863). 

The limited public access during the primacy of Manners-Sutton was also 

criticised by a writer on public libraries in the Westminster Review ƛƴ мунтΥ Ψ¢ƘŜ 

[ƛōǊŀǊȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇΩǎ tŀƭŀŎŜ ŀǘ [ŀƳōŜǘƘ ƛǎ ǎŀƛŘ ǘƻ ōŜ ƻŦ ƎǊŜŀǘ ǾŀƭǳŜΦ ±ƛǎƛǘƻǊǎ 

have been turned back with civil incivility; an order to see the Library has been 

scanned with the curious eye of an advocate seeking for a special demurrer, a 



flaw, a variance, an irregularity; it has been held to be an order to see some 

particular librarian, who was not then there, or to enter at some times, or under 

ǎƻƳŜ ŎƛǊŎǳƳǎǘŀƴŎŜǎΣ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ǘƘƻǎŜ ŜȄƛǎǘƛƴƎΦΦΦΩΦ όWestminster Review, VIII, July 

1827, p. 110). Edward Edwards cited this source, derided Manners-Sutton for the 

ǎŎŀƴǘȅ ŦŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ΨƎǊǳŘƎƛƴƎƭȅ ŘƻƭŜŘ ƻǳǘ ǘƻ ƭƛǘŜǊŀǊȅ ƳŜƴΩΣ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ǳƴŦŀƛǊƭȅ ǘƘŀǘ 

ΨǘƘŜ ƴŀƳŜ ƻŦ aŀƴƴŜǊǎ {ǳǘǘƻƴ Ƙŀǎ ƴƻ ŎƭŀƛƳ ǘƻ ŦƛƎǳǊŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ Ǌƻƭƭ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ōŜƴŜŦŀŎǘƻǊǎ 

ƻŦ ƭŜŀǊƴƛƴƎΩ. (Edward Edwards, Memoirs of libraries vol 1 (London, 1859), p. 719). 

 

Arms of Archbishop Manners-Sutton. Watercolour in a presentation copy of Vetus 

testamentum graecum e codice MS. Alexandrino (London, 1816). *E64.A5 



While dissenting from many remarks by the writer in the Westminster Review, Sir 

Nicholas Harris Nicholas wrƻǘŜ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴƛƴƎ ŀŎŎŜǎǎ ǘƻ [ŀƳōŜǘƘ tŀƭŀŎŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΥ Ψ¢ƘŜ 

obstacles, nevertheless, are sufficiently serious to prevent its being of much 

practical service. Upon one day in the week, Monday we believe, it may be 

consulted for about two hours, provided application be previously made to the 

Librarian ... The rooms in which the Library is preserved are, without exception, 

the most wretched that can be conceived, and in winter the cold is 

unsupportable. Few besides Captain Parry [William Parry, Arctic explorer] and his 

crew could, from November to April, avail themselves of the two hours a week in 

ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǘ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ǳǎŜŘ ΦΦΦΩ όThe Retrospective Review and Historical and Antiquarian 

Magazine, 2nd series, vol 1, 1827, pp. 288-9). 

Bibliography: 
 
Oxford Dictionary of National Biography articles on Archbishops Moore and 
Manners-Sutton, with further bibliography.  
 
Oxford Dictionary of National Biography articles on John Topham, Michael Lort 
and H.J. Todd, with further bibliography. 
 
For papers of Archbishops Moore and Manners-Sutton (especially in the 
!ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇǎΩ papers series and the manuscripts series) see the online catalogue 
of archives and manuscripts. 
 
 
The Library under Archbishop Howley, 1828-1848 
 
During the primacy of William Howley, Archbishop of Canterbury 1828-48, large 
sections of Lambeth Palace were demolished and replaced by new buildings 
designed by the architect Edward Blore. This work, carried out between 1829 and 
1833, included the demolition of the existing Library buildings and the fitting out 
of the seventeenth-century Great Hall to serve as the Library.  A muniment room 
was also built over an archway to the south of the Hall. 
 
 
 
 



 

The Library after transfer to the Great Hall. Watercolour by H.W. Burgess, 1833. By 

courtesy of the Museum of London (acc. no. 60.169/6) 

 
Extracts from .ƭƻǊŜΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŦƛŎƛŜƴǘ ǎǘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ old Library buildings, 
dated 10 Jan. 1829, are preserved in MS 3563, ff. 25-32. Their demolition and the 



ǘǊŀƴǎŦŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ DǊŜŀǘ Iŀƭƭ ƻŎŎǳǊǊŜŘ ŜŀǊƭȅ ƛƴ .ƭƻǊŜΩǎ ǿƻǊƪΦ ! ƭŜǘǘŜǊ 
dated 8 May 1830, published in the DŜƴǘƭŜƳŀƴΩǎ aŀƎŀȊƛƴŜ (vol 147, May 1830, 
pp. 393-пύ ǊŜǇƻǊǘǎ ǘƘŀǘΥ Ψ¢Ƙƛǎ Iŀƭƭ Χ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ŎƻƴǾŜǊǘŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǎƛƴƎǳƭŀǊ ǎƪƛƭƭ ŀƴŘ 
felicity into the archiepiscopal library; and the former library, which was in the 
interior of the old Palace, and very much decayed by time, has been removed. 
Contiguous to the hall (or new library) over a newly-ōǳƛƭǘ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ ƎŀǘŜǿŀȅ Χ ƛǎ 
constructed a fire-proof room for the preservation of the manuscripts and 
ƛƴǾŀƭǳŀōƭŜ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΧΩΦ  CƻǊ .ƭƻǊŜΩǎ ŘǊŀǿƛƴƎǎΣ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘǎ ŀƴŘ ǿŀǘŜǊŎƻƭƻǳǊǎ ƻŦ 
Lambeth Palace, see Bibliography. 
 
A magnificent album containing six watercolours and drawings of Lambeth Palace 
(with two of Fulham Palace and four of Addington Palace) was prepared for 
Archbishop Howley by the artist Henry William Burgess in 1833. This includes a 
fine watercolour of the interior of the Great Hall fitted out as the Library, and with 
its walls hung with paintings. The album is held by the Museum of London 
(accession no. 60.169). Images of all twelve watercolours and drawings are 
ŀŎŎŜǎǎƛōƭŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ aǳǎŜǳƳΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜ, image refs. 005139-50).  
 
A further illustration of the Hall, drawn and engraved by Robert William Billings, 
was printed to accompany a description of the Library in GŜƴǘƭŜƳŀƴΩǎ aŀƎŀȊƛƴŜ 
series 2, vol 2, August 1834, pp. 151-4 (copy also in Prints 020/021b). 
 
{ƻƻƴ ŀŦǘŜǊ .ƭƻǊŜΩǎ ǿƻǊƪΣ ²ŀǘŜǊƭƻǿ ŀƴŘ {ƻƴǎ ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ΨōŜŦƻǊŜ ŀƴŘ ŀŦǘŜǊΩ ƭƛǘƘƻƎǊŀǇƘǎ 
showing the north and south elevations of Lambeth Palace in 1828 and 1830 and 
floor plans of the Palace in 1828 and 1830 (partly coloured copies in Prints 
014/029, 034-лпмύΦ ¢ƘŜ DǊŜŀǘ Iŀƭƭκ[ƛōǊŀǊȅ ŀŦǘŜǊ .ƭƻǊŜΩǎ ǿƻǊƪ ƛǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 
plan which is 014/039, accessible via the LibrarȅΩǎ ƻƴƭƛƴŜ ƛƳŀƎŜ ǎȅǎǘŜƳ.  
 
The arrangement of the printed books in the Great Hall was recorded by E.W. 
.ǊŀȅƭŜȅ ƛƴ мурлΥ Ψ¢ƘŜȅ ŀǊŜ ǇŀǊǘƭȅ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜŘ ƛƴ ŎŀǎŜǎ ŀŦŦƛȄŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǎƛŘŜ-walls, and 
partly in twelve large cases projecting towards the middle of the room; the 
ƛƴǘŜǊǾŜƴƛƴƎ ǊŜŎŜǎǎŜǎ ōŜƛƴƎ ƻŎŎǳǇƛŜŘ ōȅ ƳŀǎǎƛǾŜ ǘŀōƭŜǎ ƻŦ ƻŀƪ Χ ¢ƘŜ ŜŀǊƭƛŜǎǘ 
printed books are principally kept within the recess of the south-west bay 
window, which forms ŀ ŎƻƴǾŜƴƛŜƴǘ ǇǊƛǾŀǘŜ ǎǘǳŘȅ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴΩΦ {ŜŜ 9Φ²Φ 
Brayley, A topographical history of Surrey (London, 1850), vol 3, p. 303. Beriah 
.ƻǘŦƛŜƭŘ ƴƻǘŜŘ ƛƴ мупф ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘƛƴƎ ōƻƻƪŎŀǎŜǎ ΨƳŀƪŜ ŀǎ ƛǘ ǿŜǊŜ ŀ ƭƛǘǘƭŜ 
book-ǊƻƻƳ ƛƴ ŜŀŎƘ ǊŜŎŜǎǎΩΦ IŜ ŀƭǎƻ ƴƻǘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ Iŀƭƭ ǿŀǎ ΨŎƻƳǇƭŜǘŜƭȅ ǿŀǊƳŜŘ 



at pleasure by two grand fire-places, one ŀǘ ŜŀŎƘ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǊƻƻƳΩ (Beriah 
Botfield, Notes on the cathedral libraries of England (London, 1849), pp. 189-258).  
 
The Library in its new location, the Great Hall, was visited by Frederick William IV, 
King of Prussia, in 1842. According to The Times, Ψ¢ƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅ Χ ŜƭƛŎƛǘŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ 
tǊǳǎǎƛŀƴ ƳƻƴŀǊŎƘ ŜȄǇǊŜǎǎƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ŜȄǘǊŜƳŜ ŘŜƭƛƎƘǘΩΦ !ǘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǉǳŜǎǘ ƻŦ aǊǎΦ IƻǿƭŜȅΣ 
ǘƘŜ YƛƴƎ ŀŘŘŜŘ Ƙƛǎ ŀǳǘƻƎǊŀǇƘ ǘƻ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ōƻƻƪǎΥ ΨCǊŜŘerick William, King of 
tǊǳǎǎƛŀΣ CŜōǊǳŀǊȅ нΣ мупнΩ όǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƛƴ The Times, 3 Feb. 1842).  
 
The appointment of the Ecclesiastical Commissioners, under the Ecclesiastical 
Commissioners Act of 1836, was to prove decisive for the future of the Library, 
but had no immediate impact during the primacy of Archbishop Howley. Howley 
was, however, required to report on the revenues and expenditure of the see of 
Canterbury. In 1836 Howley reported annual expenditure in respect of Lambeth 
Palace Library as follows: 1829 £40; 1830 £70; 1831 £47 6s; 1832 £40; 1833 £40; 
1834 ϻплΤ муор ϻплΦ ό/ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴŜǊǎΩ records ECE/7/1/28973 part 1, quoted in 
Ecclesiastical Commissioners to Archbishop Longley 13 April 1867). The sum of 
£40 was the traditional annual salary of the Librarian.  
 
Librarians and Keepers of the Records: 
 
Thomas Archdeacon Lewis (1780-1862), Assistant Secretary successively to 
Archbishops Manners-Sutton and Howley, is frequently referred to from the 
муолǎ ƻƴǿŀǊŘǎ ŀǎ ΨYŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ wŜŎƻǊŘǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ ƻŦ /ŀƴǘŜǊōǳǊȅΩΦ IŜ 
appears to have been given this role at some point after 1824, for in that year the 
Ǉƻǎǘ ǿŀǎ ǎǘƛƭƭ ƘŜƭŘ ōȅ DŜƻǊƎŜ 5ΩhȅƭȅΦ [Ŝǿƛǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ŀǎ !ǎǎƛǎǘŀƴǘ {ŜŎǊŜǘŀǊȅ ŀƴŘ 
ŀǎ YŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ wŜŎƻǊŘǎ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘƻǳǘ IƻǿƭŜȅΩǎ ǇǊƛƳŀŎȅ ŀƴŘ ƛǎ ƴŀƳŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ Clergy 
List ŀǎ ΨYŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ wŜŎƻǊŘǎΩ ƛƴ ŜŘƛǘƛƻƴǎ ŦǊƻm 1841 to 1848. In 1836 Edward Baines 
ǇǳōƭƛǎƘŜŘ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ tŀǊƭƛŀƳŜƴǘŀǊȅ ǎǳǊǾŜȅǎ ƻŦ /ƘǳǊŎƘ ƭŀƴŘǎΣ Ψōȅ ƭƛōŜǊŀƭ ǇŜǊƳƛǎǎƛƻƴ 
of his Grace the Archbishop of Canterbury and the facilities afforded by the 
politeness of his secretary, Thomas Archdeacon Lewis Esq, keeper of the 
!ǊŎƘƛŜǇƛǎŎƻǇŀƭ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΩ ό9ŘǿŀǊŘ .ŀƛƴŜǎΣ History of the County Palatine and Duchy 
of Lancaster (vol 4, 1836, p. 804, appx xxi). In the preface, dated 1839, to Collectio 
rerum ecclesiasticarum de dioecese Eboracensi (London, 1842), George Lawton 
also ŀŎƪƴƻǿƭŜŘƎŜŘ ΨǘƘŜ ŀǘǘŜƴǘƛƻƴ ƘŜ ǊŜŎŜƛǾŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ¢Φ!Φ [Ŝǿƛǎ 9ǎǉΦΣ ǘƘŜ YŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ 
Ƙƛǎ DǊŀŎŜΩǎ wŜŎƻǊŘǎ ŀǘ [ŀƳōŜǘƘΩΦ  
 



During discussions in the 1860s on the financing of the Library it was frequently 
stated that, until the appointment of S.R. Maitland as Librarian in 1838, Howley 
ΨƛƴǾŀǊƛŀōƭȅ ƛŦ ƴƻǘ ŀƭǿŀȅǎΩ ŀǇǇƻƛƴǘŜŘ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ Ƙƛǎ ŘƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ ŎƘŀǇƭŀƛƴǎ ŀǎ [ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴΣ ǎƻ 
ǎŜŎǳǊƛƴƎ ŀ ǎŀǘƛǎŦŀŎǘƻǊȅ ƭƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴ ǿƛƭƭƛƴƎ ǘƻ ǎŜǊǾŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǎƳŀƭƭ ǎŀƭŀǊȅΣ ƻǊ ΨŀƴŎƛŜƴǘ 
ŎǳǎǘƻƳŀǊȅ ǇŜƴǎƛƻƴΩΣ ƻŦ ϻпл Ǉer annum. (Church Commissioners records, 
ECE/7/1/28973, part 1, case for legal opinions, 1868).  Although no records of 
ŀǇǇƻƛƴǘƳŜƴǘǎ ǎǳǊǾƛǾŜΣ ƛǘ ƛǎ ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ǘƘŀǘ DŜƻǊƎŜ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ŀƴŘ /ƘŀǊƭŜǎ !ǘƳƻǊŜ hƎƛƭǾƛŜ, 
both chaplains, served successively as Librarian in the years before 1838. 

DŜƻǊƎŜ 5ΩhȅƭȅΣ /ƘŀǇƭŀƛƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ ŀƴŘ wŜŎǘƻǊ ƻŦ [ŀƳōŜǘƘΣ ŎŜǊǘŀƛƴƭȅ 
continued the work of the Library under Archbishop Howley as he had during the 
primacy of Archbishop Manners-Sutton (see above). It should be noted that a 
stateƳŜƴǘ ƳŀŘŜ ōȅ 5ΩOȅƭȅΩs son, that his father had given up his chaplaincy on 
appointment as Rector of Lambeth in 1820 (DŜƻǊƎŜ 5ΩhȅƭȅΣ {ŜǊƳƻƴǎ Χ ǿƛǘƘ ŀ 
memoir by his son, 2 vols (London, 1847), vol 1., p. xxx) is contradicted by 
numerous documents at Lambeth aǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ōȅ 5ΩhȅƭȅΩǎ ŘŜǎŎǊƛǇǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ƘƛƳǎŜƭŦ ƛƴ 
Ƙƛǎ ǇǳōƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ǊŜƳŀƛƴŜŘ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŀŦŦŀƛǊǎ ƻŦ [ŀƳōŜǘƘ tŀƭŀŎŜ, and is 
named as Chaplain as late as 1837 (VB1/15/426) despite his heavy workload in 
the ever more populous parish of Lambeth including his opening of numerous 
new churches.  

 

 

IŀƴŘ ƻŦ DŜƻǊƎŜ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ό[wκ.κмΣ ŦΦ нпǊΦ Library loans to James Hatley Frere, 1817) 

 



A chance survival of the record of a loan of several of the Carew Irish manuscripts  
In 1830 shows [Ŝǿƛǎ ŀƴŘ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ƛƴ cooperation, seemingly in their respective 
roles as Keeper of the Archiepiscopal Records and as Librarian. A note, 
presumably ŦǊƻƳ [ŜǿƛǎΣ ƭƛǎǘǎ ǎƛȄ ƳŀƴǳǎŎǊƛǇǘǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ΨŦƻǊ {ƛǊ /Φ ¢Φ ¸ŀǘŜǎΩ. [? Sir 
Thomas Charles Yates (d. 1834) of Firmins, Co. Kildare] ΨHe will attend at 12 
ƻΩŎƭƻŎƪ {ŀǘǳǊŘŀȅ ƛŦ 5ǊΦ 5Ωhȅƭȅ ǿƛƭƭ ƭŜǘ ƳŜ ƘŀǾŜ ǘƘŜ ŀōƻǾŜ ǾƻƭǳƳŜǎΩΦ ¢Ƙe note was 
then ŀƴƴƻǘŀǘŜŘ ōȅ 5ΩhȅƭȅΣ ǘƻ ǿƘƻƳ it ǿŀǎ ŜǾƛŘŜƴǘƭȅ ŀŘŘǊŜǎǎŜŘΥ Ψ¢ŀƪŜƴ ƻǳǘ 5 May 
муол ōȅ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇΩǎ ǇŜǊƳƛǎǎƛƻƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ {ŜŎǊŜǘŀǊȅΩǎ ƻŦŦƛŎŜΩ (LR/D/5, f. 123).  
 
!ǘ ǎƻƳŜ Ǉƻƛƴǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ муолǎ 5ΩhȅƭȅΩǎ ǊƻƭŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅ ŀǇǇŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ǇŀǎǎŜŘ ǘƻ 
ŀƴƻǘƘŜǊ ƻŦ IƻǿƭŜȅΩǎ ŎƘŀǇƭŀƛƴǎΣ /ƘŀǊƭŜǎ !ǘƳƻǊŜ hƎƛƭǾƛŜ όмтфо-1873), afterwards 
όŦǊƻƳ мупнύ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ tǊƻŦŜǎǎƻǊ ƻŦ tŀǎǘƻǊŀƭ ¢ƘŜƻƭƻƎȅ ŀǘ hȄŦƻǊŘΦ hƎƛƭǾƛŜΩǎ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊ 
entries recording the books borrowed by him from the Library (as well as books 
for the Archbishop) while living in an apartment at Lambeth Palace between 
February 1833 and November 1837 roughly indicate his time at Lambeth (LR/B/1), 
although his appointment as domestic chaplain is dated 20 Feb. 1834 
(VB1/15/295).  He was simultaneously Rector of Abbotsley, Hunts., 1822-39 and 
Vicar of Duloe 1833-40.  
 
Ogilvie is named as Librarian in a list of the Lambeth Librarians, seemingly 
compiled by, or for, William Stubbs, Lambeth Librarian 1862-8, recording his 
predecessors from the time of A.C. Ducarel onwards. This was found in a copy, 
owned by Stubbs, of E.W. Brayley, A concise account, historical and descriptive, of 
Lambeth Palace (London, 1806), and is now preserved as LR/D/6, file 15. It 
ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ ŀ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘΣ ƛƴ {ǘǳōōǎΩ ƘŀƴŘΥ Ψ/Φ!Φ hƎƛƭǾƛŜ 55Σ ŀŦǘŜǊǿŀǊŘǎ tǊƻŦŜǎǎƻǊ ƻŦ 
tŀǎǘƻǊŀƭ ¢ƘŜƻƭƻƎȅΣ ǿŀǎ [ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴ ōŜŦƻǊŜ муоуΩΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ŎŀǊǊƛŜǎ ǎƻƳŜ ǿŜƛƎƘǘ ŀǎ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ 
ǿǊƛǘǘŜƴ ƛƴ hƎƛƭǾƛŜΩǎ ƭƛŦŜǘƛƳŜΦ   
  
hƎƛƭǾƛŜ ƳŀŘŜ ƻŎŎŀǎƛƻƴŀƭ ŜƴǘǊƛŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ƻŦ ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ōƻƻƪǎΣ 
accompanied by his initials, recording, for instance, his transfer of several Caxtons 
to the Manuscripts Library in April 1834 (LR/F/17, p. 384), and the gift in 1837 of a 
reprint ƻŦ ¢ȅƴŘŀƭŜΩǎ bŜǿ ¢ŜǎǘŀƳŜƴǘ ό[wκCκмтΣ ǇΦнлфΣ ŀƴŘ ǎŜŜ hƎƛƭǾƛŜΩǎ ƛƴǎŎǊƛǇǘƛƻƴ 
in the book itself, now at **E140 (1836)). John Jebb sent Ogilvie a sample 
biography for a projected work on Select worthies of the Anglican Church ΨǿƛǘƘ ŀ 
view to obtaining a judgmŜƴǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘ Χ ŀƴŘ Χ ǘƻ ǇǊƻŎǳǊƛƴƎ ŀŎŎŜǎǎ ǘƻ ŀƴȅ 
original materials possibly existing in the archiepiscopal library at Lambeth ΧΩΦ {ŜŜ 
Charles Forster, ¢ƘŜ ƭƛŦŜ ƻŦ WƻƘƴ WŜōō Χ .ƛǎƘƻǇ ƻŦ [ƛƳŜǊƛŎƪ, vol 1 (London, 1836), p. 



391. Ogilvie also collated a Hooker manuscript at Lambeth (MS 711, item 2) for 
WƻƘƴ YŜōƭŜΦ YŜōƭŜ ǿǊƻǘŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘƛǎ ƳŀƴǳǎŎǊƛǇǘ ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ ΨƳƻǎǘ ŎŀǊŜŦǳƭƭȅ ŎƻƭƭŀǘŜŘ ŦƻǊ 
ǘƘƛǎ ŜŘƛǘƛƻƴ ōȅ wŜǾΦ / ! hƎƛƭǾƛŜΦΣ ƻŦ .ŀƭƭƛƻƭ /ƻƭƭŜƎŜ hȄŦƻǊŘΣ Ƙƛǎ DǊŀŎŜΩǎ ŎƘŀǇƭŀƛƴΩ 
(¢ƘŜ ǿƻǊƪǎ ƻŦ Χ wƛŎƘŀǊŘ IƻƻƪŜǊ Χ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜd by John Keble 2nd edn, (Oxford, 1836), 
vol 1, p. xxxvii).  
 
In 1838 Howley appointed Samuel Roffey Maitland (1792-1866) as Librarian, a 
Ǉƻǎǘ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƘŜ ǊŜǘŀƛƴŜŘ ǳƴǘƛƭ IƻǿƭŜȅΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ ƛƴ мупуΦ aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘ ƛǎ ƴŀƳŜŘ ŀǎ 
Ψ[ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴΩ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ Clergy List from 1841 to 1848. In his catalogues of printed books, 
published in 1843 and 1845, Maitland ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜŘ ƘƛƳǎŜƭŦ ŀǎ ΨYŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ aSS. 
ŀƴŘ [ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴ ǘƻ Ƙƛǎ DǊŀŎŜ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ ƻŦ /ŀƴǘŜǊōǳǊȅΩ ŀƴŘ Ψ[ƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴ ǘƻ Ƙƛǎ 
DǊŀŎŜΣ ŀƴŘ YŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ a{{Φ ŀǘ [ŀƳōŜǘƘΩΦ A photograph of Maitland in old age 
is included in LR/K/1/7 and another is pasted into a copy of S.R. Maitland, The 
dark ages 2nd edn (London, 1845) at K119; an earlier photograph is amongst 
photographs of Lambeth Librarians in the prints collection and accessible via the 
[ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ ƻƴƭƛƴŜ ƛƳŀƎŜ ǎȅǎǘŜƳΦ 
 

 

Hand of Samuel Roffey Maitland (LR/D/5, f. 184) 

 
Maitland was a man of private means who, although paid only £40 per annum as 
Librarian, personally employed an assistant librarian at £150 per annum (Church 
/ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴŜǊǎΩ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΣ 9/9κтκмκнуфтоΣ ǇŀǊǘ мΣ ŎŀǎŜ ŘǊŀǿƴ ǳǇ ƻƴ ōŜƘŀƭŦ ƻŦ 
Archbishop Longley for the opinion of Sir Roundell Palmer and James Hannen, 



January 1868). According to his friend William J. Thoms, this assistant or clerk of 
Maitland was employed at a salary of two guineas per week (see Bibliography). 
Many of the surviving catalogues and papers ŦǊƻƳ aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘΩǎ ƭƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴǎƘƛǇ ŀǊŜ ƛƴ 
the hand of this assistant. He is identified as Robert Metcalf (c.1778-1869) in a 
letter from William J. Thoms to the Editor of The Times appealing to those who 
ƪƴŜǿ aŜǘŎŀƭŦΩǎ diligent work in the Library to succour his destitute daughters 
ŀŦǘŜǊ ŀƴ ŀƴƴǳƛǘȅ ōŜǉǳŜŀǘƘŜŘ ōȅ aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘ ŎŜŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ aŜǘŎŀƭŦΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ όThe Times, 
19 April 1870). 
 

 

Hand of Robert Metcalf, assistant to S.R. Maitland (LR/D/5, f. 185r)  

 
Printed Books: 
 
Archbishop Howley bequeathed his personal library to Benjamin Harrison, his 
chaplain and Archdeacon of Maidstone. The combined Howley/Harrison 
collection (c. 16,000 vols) was given to the Dean and Chapter of Canterbury on 
IŀǊǊƛǎƻƴΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ ƛƴ муут ŀƴŘ ǊŜƳŀƛƴǎ ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ /ŀƴǘŜǊōǳǊȅ /ŀǘƘŜŘǊŀƭ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΦ {ome 
books, especially pamphlets, had nevertheless been given by Howley to Lambeth 



Palace Library. William Stubbs (Lambeth Librarian 1862-8) referred to the 
ΨǾŀƭǳŀōƭŜ ŎƻƴǘǊƻǾŜǊǎƛŀƭ ŎƻƭƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƎƛǾŜƴ ōȅ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ IƻǿƭŜȅΩ ƻŦ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ 
then no catalogue (MS 1680, ff. 40-42). IƻǿƭŜȅΩǎ Řƻƴŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ [ŀƳōŜǘƘ tŀƭŀŎŜ 
Library appears to have consisted largely of pamphlets. These were catalogued by 
S.W. Kershaw in 1886-7 (LR/F/54, ff. 56-190, rectos only, and LR/F/55, ff. 191-292, 
rectos only). They comprise some 163 volumes, being almost all of the 19th 
century up to 1844, probably the year in which the collection was presented. 
IƻǿƭŜȅΩǎ ōƻƻƪǇƭŀǘŜ ƛǎ ƻŦǘŜƴ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜǎŜ ǾƻƭǳƳŜǎΦ 
 

 

Bookplate of Archbishop Howley (H5937/20, American Church pamphlets 1830-6) 

 
The move of the printed books to their new location in the Great Hall took place 
in 1829 or 1830 (see above). A stock check appears to have been taken at this 



time by a Mr. Lewis, presumably Thomas Archdeacon Lewis (see LR/D/5, ff. 147-
153). 
 
Samuel Roffey Maitland, aided by his assistant, was the first Librarian since the 
death of Ducarel in 1785 to make a significant contribution to the Library. He was 
a skilled bibliographer who did much to draw the bibliographical riches of the 
Library to public attention. Maitland compiled A list of some of the early printed 
books in the Archiepiscopal Library at Lambeth (London, 1843), recording more 
than 400 foreign books published before 1520 and about 200 English books 
published before 1550. Maitland also compiled An index of such English books 
printed before the year MDC, as are now in the Archiepiscopal Library at Lambeth 
(London, 1845). This gives only brief details of each book.  Fuller bibliographical 
descriptions are contained in an unpublished catalogue by Maitland, written on 
slips and preserved in 7 slip cases (LR/F/69). 
 
In the Preface to his List Maitland regretted that his identification of the early 
books at Lambeth was dependent on the old catalogues still in use in the Library 
[primarily that begun by David Wilkins in 1718]. He sought nevertheless to follow 
new standards of bibliographical descriptions appropriate to scholarship after the 
work of William Herbert and Thomas Frognall Dibdin. 
 
Additional bibliographical work by Maitland remains unpublished, including a list 
of English printed books 1600-33 in Lambeth Palace Library. LR/D/6, LR/F/28-29, 
LR/F/68-69 are all catalogues of early printed books in the Library compiled by 
Maitland. In addition he oversaw the compilation of an extensive shelf list of the 
printed books, written on slips (LR/F/70). 
 
aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘ ŀƭǎƻ ƳŀŘŜ ƴǳƳŜǊƻǳǎ ŜƴǘǊƛŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ old catalogue of printed 
books (begun in 1718), both for old and new publications (eg. LR/F/17, p. 376, 
where he recorded numerous library catalogues published between 1777 and 
1843).   
 
5ǳǊƛƴƎ aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘΩǎ ƭƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴǎƘƛǇ the catalogue begun in 1718 by David Wilkins and 
those by Andrew Coltee Ducarel remained in current use. The printed books also 
retained their old shelf-marks from the era before their transfer to the Great Hall. 
Maitland appears to have prepared for a re-arrangement with new shelf-marks 
(see LR/D/6, file 9), but there is no evidence that this was completed. William 



Stubbs wrote that a re-arrangement of the books by subject had been projected 
by Archbishop Howley, but at the time of  {ǘǳōōǎΩ report in 1863 the books 
remained as they were in two classes [ie. arranged in two sizes, not by subject] 
(Church Commissioners records, ECE/7/1/28973, part 1). Throughout his 
bibliographical work Maitland referred to the Lambeth books by their pre-Great 
Hall shelf-marks ŀƴŘ ƛǘ ƛǎ ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ǘƘŀǘ aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘΩǎ ǿƻǊƪ ǘƻǿŀǊŘǎ ŀ ƴŜǿ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ǿŀǎ 
frustrated by the ending of his librarianship on the death of Archbishop Howley in 
1848.  The compilation of a new catalogue and new shelf marks did not begin 
until 1869. 
 
A programme of rebinding was begun by Archbishop Howley, but only a small 
portion of the folios was completed, at a cost reported to be £110 (Church 
/ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴŜǊǎΩ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΣ 9/9κтκмκн8973, part 1, case drawn up on behalf of 
Archbishop Longley for the opinion of Sir Roundell Palmer and James Hannen, 
1867 or early 1868). 
 
Manuscripts and Archives:  
 
In 1833 Lewis wrote to the Commissioners on the Public Records, signing himself 
ŀǎ Ψ¢ƘƻΦ !Φ [ŜǿƛǎΣ YŜŜǇŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ ƻŦ /ŀƴǘŜǊōǳǊȅΩǎ wŜŎƻǊŘǎΩΦ IŜ ƎŀǾŜ 
ŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜ ǘƘŀǘ ΨΧ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŀǊŜ ƴƻǘ ŀƴȅ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ ƘŜǊŜ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ǘƘƻǎŜ ƴŀƳŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 
ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ǇǳōƭƛǎƘŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊ мумнΩ. See General 
Report to the King in Council from the Honourable Board of Commissioners on the 
Public Records (London, 1837), Appendix, p. 392. 
 
S.R. Maitland produced a catalogue of manuscripts (LR/D/5, ff. 154-165) recording 
acquisitions since the publication of the catalogue by H.J. Todd in 1812.  
 
Records of Convocation had been held by the Library since the librarianship of 
Ducarel, who noted them in 1770 (MS 1998, ff. 52-3; MS 2214, ff. 28-9). They 
were briefly recorded by H.J. Todd in his catalogue of 1812 as MS 1173; Todd 
noted that they comprised a chest and six boxes. A fuller list of them was 
compiled by S.R. Maitland in the 1840s (LR/D/5, ff. 173-179). 
 
{ƻƳŜ ōƛƴŘƛƴƎ ŀǇǇŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ŎŀǊǊƛŜŘ ƻǳǘ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘΩǎ ƭƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴǎƘƛǇΦ ! 
later Librarian, S.W. Kershaw, stated that the Cartae Miscellaneae had been 
rebound at the expense of Archbishop Howley around 1846 (LR/F/53).  



Public Use and Access: 
 
aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘΩǎ ƎŜƴŜǊƻǎƛǘȅ ƛƴ ŜƳǇƭƻȅƛƴƎ ŀƴ ŀǎǎƛǎǘŀƴǘ ŀǘ Ƙƛǎ ƻǿƴ ŜȄǇŜƴǎŜ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ŦƻǊ 
ǘƘŜ Řŀƛƭȅ ŀǘǘŜƴŘŀƴŎŜ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅ ƻŦ Ƙƛǎ ŀǎǎƛǎǘŀƴǘ ƻǊ ƘƛƳǎŜƭŦ ΨŀƴŘ caused the 
Library to be opened (as it had never previously been) for the daily use of the 
ǇǳōƭƛŎΩ ό/ƘǳǊŎƘ /ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴŜǊǎΩ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΣ 9/9κтκмκнуфтоΣ ǇŀǊǘ мΣ ŎŀǎŜ ŘǊŀǿƴ ǳǇ ƻƴ 
behalf of Archbishop Longley for the opinion of Sir Roundell Palmer and James 
HannenΣ муст ƻǊ ŜŀǊƭȅ мусуύΦ ²ƛƭƭƛŀƳ WΦ ¢ƘƻƳǎ ŀƭǎƻ ǇŀƛŘ ǘǊƛōǳǘŜ ǘƻ aŀƛǘƭŀƴŘΩǎ 
ŘƛƭƛƎŜƴŎŜ ƛƴ ŀǎǎƛǎǘƛƴƎ ǊŜŀŘŜǊǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΣ ΨŀƴŘ ǇǊƻōŀōƭȅ ŀǘ ƴƻ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ǎƛƴŎŜ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ 
ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘŜŘ ǿŀǎ ƛǘ ǎƻ ƳǳŎƘ ǳǎŜŘ ŀǎ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ Ƙƛǎ ƭƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴǎƘƛǇΩ ό²ƛƭƭƛŀƳ WΦ ¢ƘƻƳǎΣ 
Ψ[ŀƳōŜǘƘ [ƛōǊŀǊȅ and its LiōǊŀǊƛŀƴǎΩΣ Notes and Queries, 4th series vol 1 (1), 4 Jan. 
1868 pp. 9-10 and 18 Jan. 1868, pp. 48-51). 
 
9ŘǿŀǊŘ .ƭƻǊŜΩǎ Ǉƭŀƴǎ of c.1829 for the refitting of the Great Hall as the Library 
show a concern for the comfort of readers. His plan survives of an underfloor 
heating system, fed from a boiler outside the north east corner of the Hall (MS 
3104, f. 230; image accessible online in the LiōǊŀǊȅΩǎ online image system). Hot 
pipes below the floor ran down each side of the room in front of the projecting 
bookcases. Grilles in the floor, situated in front of each recess between the 
projecting bookcases where readers studied, allowed hot air to rise. These grilles 
may be seen in the watercolour of the Library painted by H.W. Burgess in 1833 
(Museum of London website, image ref. 005144), and more clearly in a view of 
the Library in 1886 published in The Graphic (reproduced in Lambeth Palace 
Library: treasures from the collections of the Archbishops of Canterbury, ed. 
Richard Palmer and Michelle Brown, London, 2010, p. 21, and accessible in the 
[ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ ƻƴƭƛƴŜ ƛƳŀƎŜ ǎȅǎǘŜƳύ ŀƴŘ in a view of the Library in 1897 published in 
¢ƘŜ vǳŜŜƴΩǎ [ƻƴŘƻƴ (Cassell & Co, 1897), copy of the view in MS 4728 ff. 164-5.  
.ƭƻǊŜΩǎ ƘŜŀǘƛƴƎ ǎȅǎǘŜƳ ǇǊƻǾŜŘ ƘƻǿŜǾŜǊ ǘƻ ōŜ ƛƴŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜ ƻǊ ǎƘƻǊǘ-lived. In 1869 
ǘƘŜ ŀǊŎƘƛǘŜŎǘ 9ǿŀƴ /ƘǊƛǎǘƛŀƴ ǿǊƻǘŜΥ Ψ¢ƘŜ ǊƻƻƳ ǿŀǎ ŦƻǊƳŜǊƭȅ ǿŀǊƳŜŘΣ ōǳǘ ŀǎ L ŀƳ 
informed ineffectually, by hot water pipes laid below the floor, but these have 
long since been disused and the boiler and its fittings are now quite useless by 
ǊŜŀǎƻƴ ƻŦ ŘŜŎŀȅΩΦ ό/ƘǳǊŎƘ /ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴŜǊǎΩ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΣ 9/9κтκмκнуфтоΣ ǇŀǊǘ оΣ ƭŜǘǘŜǊǎ 
of Ewan Christian 29 Oct and 18 Nov 1869). It is possiblŜ ǘƘŀǘ .ƭƻǊŜΩǎ ƘŜŀǘƛƴƎ 
system failed at an early date, bearing in mind the remark of Beriah Botfield 
published in 1849 that the Library was warmed by the two fireplaces at either end 
of the Hall (see above).  
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Lambeth Palace Library MSS 3104-3105 and 2949. Further Blore drawings are in 
the British Library (Add MSS 42000-42047). 
 
For the !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇΩǎ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǊŜōǳilding of Lambeth Palace 1829-33, see 
TG 43-55 and MSS 1561 and 2197. 
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²ƛƭƭƛŀƳ WΦ ¢ƘƻƳǎΣ Ψ[ŀƳōŜǘƘ [ƛōǊŀǊȅ ŀƴŘ ƛǘǎ ƭƛōǊŀǊƛŀƴǎΩΣ Notes and Queries, 4th series 
vol 1 (1), 4 Jan. 1868 pp. 9-10 and 18 Jan. 1868, pp. 48-51. A copy of this article is 
pasted into a copy of E.W.Brayley, A concise account, historical and descriptive, of 
Lambeth Palace (London, 1806), once owned by William Stubbs, shelved at 
H5195.S9L2. 
 
For personal papers of Samuel Roffey Maitland, see MSS 1943-1945.  
 
 
The Library under Archbishop Sumner, 1848-1862  
 
The personal papers of John Bird Sumner, Archbishop of Canterbury 1848-62, do 
not survive and there is little documentation on the Library during his primacy. It 
is clear nonetheless that during these years the Library remained static. No new 



catalogues were made and there is scant evidence of significant acquisitions, 
other than a magnificent copy of Das Neue Testament Deutsch durch D. Martin 
Luther (Berlin: Rudolph Ludwig Decker, 1851), presented to the Archbishop by 
Prince Frederick of Prussia, afterwards Emperor of Germany, to commemorate his 
marriage to Princess Victoria which was conducted by Sumner on 25 January 
1858.  
 
According to an article in the Church Times by a City rector with the pseudonym 
ΨtŜǘŜǊ [ƻƳōŀǊŘΩ [Revd. William Benham], published c.1889-1909, Archbishop 
Sumner gave only two books to the Library during his fourteen years as Primate, 
one being a work on butterflies. [A report based on this article, printed on pink 
paper, is pasted into a copy of E.W. Brayley, A concise account historical and 
descriptive of Lambeth Palace (London, 1806), grangerised by Samuel Wayland 
Kershaw, Lambeth Librarian; copy at H5195.S9L2]. 
 
No binding or repair to the collections was carried out between 1848 and 1868 
ό/ƘǳǊŎƘ /ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴŜǊǎΩ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΣ 9/9κтκмκнуфтоΣ ǇŀǊǘмΣ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ [ƻƴƎƭŜȅΩǎ 
case for the opinion of Sir Roundell Palmer and James Hannen).  
 
Librarians and Keepers of the Records: 
 
On coming to Lambeth in 1848, Archbishop Sumner chose not to re-appoint S.R. 
Maitland as Librarian. Instead he appointed his son-in-law John Thomas (1810-
1883) as his Domestic Chaplain and as Librarian. Thomas is named as Librarian in 
the Clergy List in editions from 1849 to 1862.  He was also a lawyer (B.C.L. 1837, 
D.C.L. 1856) and was Vicar of All Hallows Barking, in the City of London, 1852-83. 
 
A small number of rough entries in pencil in ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩǎ ŎŀǘŀƭƻƎǳŜ ƻŦ ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ 
books, recording newly acquired ǇǳōƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ мурлǎΣ ŀǊŜ ƛƴ ¢ƘƻƳŀǎΩ ƘŀƴŘ 
(eg. LR/F/17, pp. 231,245,250, 263, 578, 716; his initials follow a note at p. 384). 
These appear to represent his sole legacy as Librarian. Thomas was described in 
мусу ŀǎ ŀ ΨƎŜƴǘƭŜƳŀƴ ǿƘƻǎŜ ƻǘƘŜǊ ŘǳǘƛŜǎ ǇǊŜǾŜƴǘŜŘ ƘƛƳ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ Ƴƻǎǘ ǇŀǊǘ ŦǊƻƳ 
ƎƛǾƛƴƎ Ƙƛǎ ǇŜǊǎƻƴŀƭ ŀǘǘŜƴŘŀƴŎŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ [ƛōǊŀǊȅΩ ό/ƘǳǊŎƘ /ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴŜǊǎΩ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎΣ 
9/9κтκмκнуфтоΣ ǇŀǊǘмΣ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇ [ƻƴƎƭŜȅΩǎ ŎŀǎŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ƻǇƛƴƛƻƴ ƻŦ {ƛǊ wƻǳƴŘŜll 
Palmer and James Hannen).  
 



 

Hand of John Thomas, 1863 (ECE/7/1/28973 part 1, held at CERC) 

 
Archbishop Sumner also chose not to re-appoint Thomas Archdeacon Lewis as 
Keeper of the Records. Instead he appointed Felix Knyvett, who had been in his 
service while Bishop of Chester, as his Secretary and as Keeper of the Records. 
YƴȅǾŜǘǘ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜǎŜ ƻŦŦƛŎŜǎ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘƻǳǘ {ǳƳƴŜǊΩǎ ǇǊƛƳŀŎȅ όǎŜŜ ¢ŀƛǘ тфΣ ŦŦΦ 
299-302, an original testimonial written by Sumner for Knyvett in August 1862,  
ŀŘŘǊŜǎǎŜŘ ǘƻ {ǳƳƴŜǊΩǎ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎƻǊ ŀǎ !ǊŎƘōƛǎƘƻǇύΦ  Knyvett is named as Keeper of 
Records in the Clergy List in editions from 1849 to 1862.  
 


